ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 9, 2014
3:28 p.m

MEMBERS PRESENT
Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representative Lora Reinbold, Vice Chair
Representative M ke Chenaul t
Representati ve Bob Herron
Representative Charisse MIlett
Representati ve Dan Saddl er
Represent ati ve Andy Josephson
VEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Crai g Johnson
COW TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

- HEARD

Board of Certified Real Estate Appraisers

Brit Szynoni ak - Anchorage
- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

Board of Professional Counsel ors

St ephani e Johnson - None
Lynn Tashea - Anchorage

- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 206
"An Act relating to notor vehicle service contracts; and
exenpting notor vehicle service contracts from regulation as
i nsurance. "

- MOVED CSHB 206(L&C) OUT OF COMM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 116

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- April 9, 2014



"An Act relating to the use of credited mlitary service by
retired peace officers and firefighters to neet certain
requi renents for major nedical insurance coverage; and providing
for an effective date.”

- MOVED CSHB 116(L&C) OUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO 384
"An Act increasing the mninmm wage; and providing for an
effective date.”

- MOVED HB 384 OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 203
“"An Act relating to paynment or reinbursenment of health care
i nsurance clains."
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 206
SHORT TI TLE. MOTOR VEHI CLE SERVI CE CONTRACTS
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) LEDOUX

04/ 12/ 13 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
04/ 12/ 13 (H) L&C
04/ 09/ 14 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

BILL: HB 116
SHORT TI TLE. PERS CREDI T FOR M LI TARY SERVI CE
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) M LLETT

02/ 13/ 13 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 13/ 13 (H) L&C, FIN

03/ 20/ 13 (H) L&C AT 3:45 PM BARNES 124

03/ 20/ 13 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 20/ 13 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

04/ 09/ 14 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

BILL: HB 384

SHORT TI TLE:. ALASKA M NI MUM WAGE
SPONSOR(s): RULES

04/ 04/ 14 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
04/ 04/ 14 (H) L&C
04/ 09/ 14 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- April 9, 2014



W TNESS REG STER

KONRAD JACKSOQN, Staff

Representative Kurt O son

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified on behalf of the House Labor and
Commerce Standing Conmttee, Kurt dson, Chair, during the
confirmation hearings for the Board of Certified Real Estate
Apprai sers and the Board of Professional Counsel ors.

REPRESENTATI VE GABRI ELLE LEDOUX

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as prine sponsor of HB 206.

THOVAS BROMN, St aff

Representative Gabrielle LeDoux

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the prinme sponsor of
HB 206.

STEPHEN MCDANI EL, Assi stant Executive Director;

Assi st ant General Counsel

Service Contract Industry Council (SC Q)

Tal | ahassee, Florida

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 206.

LORI WNG H ER, Director

Di vision of Insurance, Anchorage O fice

Departnment of Commerce, Conmunity & Econom c Devel opnment ( DCCED)
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 206.

VASI LI OS G ALOPSCS, St af f

Representative Charisse MIlett

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the sponsor during
t he di scussion of HB 116.

KATHY LEA, Chief Pension Oficer, Central Ofice
Division of Retirenent and Benefits

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- April 9, 2014



PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 116.

TOM WRI GHT, Staff

Representative M ke Chenaul t

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 384.

GARY M LLER
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the di scussion of HB 384.

NANCY COURTNEY
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 384.

BARBARA HUFF TUCKNESS, Director

Governmental and Legislative Affairs

Teansters Local 959

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 384.

JAKE METCALFE, Executive Director

Publ i c Safety Enpl oyees Associ ati on ( PSEA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 384.

CHRI S ASHENBRENNER
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition HB 384.

ED FLANAGAN, Chair

Al askans for a Fair M ninum Wage

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of HB 384.

DOUG TANSY, President

Fai r banks Central Labor Council

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of HB 384.

KEVI N POMVEROY, Menber

Laborers Local 942

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 384.

DALE FOX, President and Chi ef Executive Oficer

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- April 9, 2014



Cabaret, Hotel, Restaurant & Retailer's Association (CHARR)
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 384.

JED VWH TTAKER
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 384.

ZEBULON WOODMAN, Menber

Labors Local 942,

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of HB 384.

BRYAN | MUS, Menber
Laborers Local 942
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of HB 384.

WALTER ROBI NSON, Menber

| nt ernati onal Brotherhood of Electrical Wrkers Local 1547
Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of HB 384.

KARM SI NGH, Power Line Representative

| nternational Brotherhood of Electrical Wrkers Local 1547
Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 384.

CHRYSTAL SCHOENROCK, Busi ness Oaner
Ni ki ski, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 384.

DANI EL LYNCH
Sol dot na, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 384.

VI NCE BELTRAM , Presi dent

Al aska AFL-Cl O (AFL-CI O

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 384.

JULI A SEYMOUR, Reverend

Lut heran Church of Hope

Eagl e Ri ver, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 384.

PAT FALON

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- April 9, 2014



Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of HB 384.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:28:28 PM

CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:28 p.m Represent ati ves
Josephson, Reinbold, Chenault, MIllett, Saddler, Herron, and
A son were present at the call to order

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

Board of Certified Real Estate Appraisers
Board of Professional Counsel ors

3:29:26 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the first order of business would be
confirmation hearings for the Board of Certified Real Estate
Apprai sers and the Board of Professional Counsel ors.

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD npbved to advance the confirnations for
appoi ntees for the Board of Certified Real Estate Appraiser and
t he Board of Professional Counselors referred to the House Labor
and Commerce Standing Conmmittee for consideration to the joint
session of the House and Senate for consideration.

KONRAD JACKSON, Staff, Representative Kurt O son, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, stated that nenbers have a copy of the nmenorandum
before them to the Chief Cerk dated April 9, 2014 for the
Governor's appointees to the Board of Certified Real Estate
Apprai sers and the Board of Professional Counselors referred to
t he House Labor and Commerce Standing Comm ttee.

3:30:21 PM

CHAIR OLSON reported that nenbers have had the information on
the appointees and have not requested the appointees be
avai l abl e for questions on their qualifications.

MR. JACKSON read the names of the Governor's appointees to the
Board of Certified Real Estate Appraisers and the Board of
Prof essi onal Counselors referred to the House Labor and Conmerce
Standing Committee. He also rem nded nenbers that signing the
reports regarding appointnents to boards and commissions in no

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- April 9, 2014



way reflect individual nenbers' approval or disapproval of the
appoi ntees, and that the nomi nations are nerely forwarded to the
full legislature for confirmation or rejection.

3:31: 09 PM

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on the confirmation hearings.

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD renoved her objection [The committee
treated it as though Representative Reinbold had objected for
t he purpose of discussion]. There being no further objection,
t he confirmations were advanced.

3:31:52 PM
The commttee took an at-ease from3:31 p.m to 3:33 p.m

HB 206- MOTOR VEH CLE SERVI CE CONTRACTS

3:33:39 PM

CHAI R CLSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 206, "An Act relating to nmotor vehicle service
contracts; and exenpting notor vehicle service contracts from
regul ati on as insurance."

3:33: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GABRI ELLE LEDOUX, Alaska State Legislature

stated that HB 206 wll bring Alaska' s regulation of notor
vehicle service contracts in line with how the industry is
regulated in nost of the states. She said that simlar |aws
have been passed in 38 states and have been endorsed by a
variety of entities, including the Autonobile Protection
Corporation, Ford Mdtor Conpany, Ally Financial, CNA National

Warranty Conpany, Toyota Financi al Servi ces, the Service
Contract Industry Council, and the National Trade Association.

This bill would protect consuners and and ensure the |ong-term
viability of the notor vehicle service contract industry. Thi s
bill is necessary, not only for nmotor vehicle service contract
providers and autonobile providers, but it is also good for
Al askan consuners. She urged nmenbers to support HB 206

3:35:12 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- April 9, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD noved to adopt the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 206, |abeled 28-LS0501\C, Wallace, 2/6/14
as the working docunent.

CHAI R OLSON obj ected for the purpose of discussion.
3:35:33 PM

THOVAS BROW, Staff, Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Alaska
State Legislature, stated that HB 206 brings forth a fair and
conprehensive regulatory framework for notor vehicle service
contracts that protects consuners and ensures the long-term
viability of the notor vehicle contract industry. He said that
at the nmonment Alaska law is unclear at best as to how a notor
vehicle service contract provider should do business in the
state. He related that HB 206 sets a clear path for how a notor
vehicle service contract provider 1is regulated in Al aska,
consistent with the treatnent of the industry in the mgjority of

the states. The industry supports this bill since it wll
provide regulatory certainty and increased uniformty for notor
vehi cl e service contract prograns. This bill would also create
a level playing field for providers to transact notor vehicle
service contracts and provi des consuner prot ections.
Additionally, it wuld provide protection to consuners by

requiring providers to allow consunmers to review the contract
after purchase and cancel the contract within a specified period
of time and receive a full refund of the purchase price.

MR. BROMWN stated that HB 206 provides clear directives as to how
the industry is regulated and protects Al aska' s consunmers by
creating a regulatory structure which wll allow the Division of
| nsurance (DO) to ensure that Alaskan consuners are treated
uniformy with other state consuners when purchasing a notor
vehi cl e service contract.

3:37:38 PM

MR BROM reviewed the section-by-section analysis of the bill

Section 1 would amend current law to renove notor vehicle
service contracts from the list of items excluded from the
current law s definition of “service contract.” Section 2
creates new subsections clarifying certain provisions of notor
vehicle service contracts including which ones are governed by
Alaska law and defining the provisions of the contracts.
Section 3 nmakes a change to existing statutes that is necessary
as a result of HB 206. Section 4 would clarify that these |aws

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- April 9, 2014



do not apply to a person but apply to the notor vehicle service
contract provider.

MR. BROM related that Section 5 adds a new title to AS 21.61
which sets forth the following: It identifies specific services
that would be offered through any notor vehicle service contract
and identifies specific disclosures that nust be included on a
notor vehicle service contract, including cancellation rights,
coverage provided, nanme and contact information, and "so forth."

3:39: 23 PM

MR. BROWN continued his section-by-section analysis of HB 206.
Section 5, AS 21.61, includes |anguage on party identification
and exenptions to the notor vehicle service contract. Thi s
section contains provisions related to providing receipts and
copies of the notor vehicle service contract within a specified
period of tinme. Proposed AS 21.61.050 requires biennial renewal
of nmotor vehicle service contract provider license. Proposed AS
21.61.060 would require registration of an entity providing
not or vehicle service contracts and AS 21.61.070 would provide
the requirenents for return and cancellation of a notor vehicle
service contract, including refunds, and information that nust
be provided by the contractor to the consuner.

MR. BROMWN stated that proposed AS 21.61.080 provides financial
responsibility requirements for notor vehicle service contract
providers to the consunmer and Iliabilities that may accrue.
Proposed AS 21.60.090 and AS 21.60.100 would set forth
definitions and authorize the director of the D vision of
| nsurance to conduct exam nations or investigations of |icensees
and contract providers. Finally, Section 6 would clarify any
| anguage used in these new sections.

3:41:11 PM

CHAI R OLSON stated that his office has not received any calls or
e-mails in opposition to HB 206. He asked whether the sponsor
has received any calls.

MR. BROWN responded that they had not.

3:41:26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked whether he could provide a little
nmore information on service contracts and differentiate between

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- April 9, 2014



service contracts and nmi ntenance agreenents. He further asked
whet her this is sonmething provided by the deal ers.

3:42: 20 PM

STEPHEN MCDANI EL, Assistant Executive Director and Assistant
CGeneral Counsel, Service Contract Industry Council (SC Q)

related that HB 206 is consistent with the regulatory treatnent
of the service contract industry across the country and wll
bring Alaska's law into line with how the service providers and
industry is regulated. It puts forth inportant consuner
protections by providing for cancellation rights and acquiring
financial responsibility of those providers of service contracts
that are being sold in Alaska, while it creates regulatory
certainty for the industry with respect to how business is done
in the state. The language in HB 206 is largely based on a
nmodel act adopted by the National Association of |nsurance
Comm ssioners in the early 1980s. This has been the foundation
for simlar |egislation adopted across the country. The SCIC s
67 menber conpanies support this, and it is a good step forward
for the regulation of notor vehicle service contracts in Al aska.

3:43: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether the bill was seen as
bei ng mutual ly beneficial for salesnmen and the purchaser.

MR. MCDANI EL indicated this bill provides a regulatory framework
that the industry believes is beneficial to the salesnen.
Typically, auto dealers sell these contracts to the consuners

It ensures individuals and entities that are naking the prom ses
in service contracts have the financial ability on contractua

prom ses to consunmers and custoners of the autonobile deal ers.
In the worst case scenario, if the providers "go under" the

consuner would be left "holding the bag.” A dealer wll honor
the contract since they don't want the consuner to go away
upset. Also, the bill would ensure that appropriate financia

backing for the providers is available as well as to clarify the
way they are to be offered in the state. This is good for the
sellers, consuners, and contract providers, he said.

3:45: 39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked for clarification on service
contracts and a sense of how inportant this is to deal ers.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- April 9, 2014



MR. MCDANIEL answered that typically the contracts offer
coverage for defects in nmaterials and workmanship as well as
sone additional provisions for things such as road hazards,
whi ch would cover tire and wheels for punctures. The benefits
vary from provider to provider, but typically will range from
five to seven years. The terns are chosen by the consuners and
by and large it is an extension of the nmanufacturer's warranty
and includes energency roadside assistance to assist consuners
when the vehicle has a breakdown.

3:47:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER related his understanding that this is
not a network of mechanical shops but is an actual service that
arranges coverage and reinburses shops in Alaska for consuners
who have purchased contracts.

MR. MCDANI EL answered that is correct. The providers actually
pay for the repair so it isn't a reinbursenment to consuners in
nost i nstances. There is usually no outlay from the consuner
unl ess the contract has a deducti bl e.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked for an estimate of the annual cost
t o consuners.

MR. MCDANI EL responded that it would depend on contract. He
suggested that the standard cost for five years runs between
$1, 200 to $1, 500.

3:48:19 PM
REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT recalled the service contract package
may provide oil changes and brake pads and can be crafted to

include all sorts of things can go wong once the regular
warranty is up.

3:49:15 PM

LORI WNGHER, Drector, Dvision of Insurance, Departnent of
Commerce, Community & Econonmic Devel opnent, related that this

bill has been worked on for several years and the division has
finally reached a <consensus that this bill wll protect
CONSUNers. She thanked the sponsor's staff and M. MDaniel,
who have been very patient with the division, She indicated

that the division is confortable with Version C of HB 206.

3:50: 03 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -11- April 9, 2014



CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 206.

CHAI R OLSON wi t hdrew hi s obj ecti on.
3:50: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD noved to report the proposed commttee
substitute (CS) for HB 206, | abeled 28-LS0501\C, Wallace, 2/6/14
out of commttee wth individual recomendations and the
acconpanying fiscal note. There being no objection, CSHB
206(L&C) was reported fromthe House Labor and Comrerce Standing
Comm ttee.

The committee took an at-ease from3:50 p.m to 3:52 p.m

HB 116- PERS CREDI T FOR M LI TARY SERVI CE

3:52:59 PM

CHAI R COLSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 116, "An Act relating to the use of credited
mlitary service by retired peace officers and firefighters to
nmeet certain requirenents for nmjor nedical insurance coverage;
and providing for an effective date.”

3:53: 55 PM

VASILIOS G ALOPSCS, Staff to Representative Charisse Mllett,
stated that HB 116 would be an option under PERS Tier Il and 111
for peace officers and firefighters who are veterans of the
armed forces to opt to purchase tinme up to five years towards

medi cal retirenment benefits. He said this would create a
separate indebtedness in conparison to the existing PERS buy-
back provisions for PERS retirenent. He stated that one change

in Version U of HB 116 [not yet before the conmttee] can be
found on page 2, [lines 28-30], of proposed Section 3, which

adds subsection (b). This anmendnent was suggested by the
Division of Retirenent & Benefits in order for the intent of the
bill to take effect. He deferred to the division to explain the
ef fect.

3:55:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD noved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS) for HB 116, | abeled 28-LS0398\U, Wayne, 2/25/14
as the working docunent.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- April 9, 2014



CHAI R OLSON obj ected for the purpose of discussion.

3:55: 30 PM
MR. G ALOPSCS referred to page 2, lines 28-30, of proposed
Section 3, which adds subsection (b). He deferred to the

Division of Retirenent & Benefits to explain the effect.
3:55: 44 PM

KATHY LEA, Chief Pension Oficer, Dvision of Retirenent and
Benefits, Depar t ment of Adm ni strati on, stated the new
subsection [in Version U clarifies that the costs calculated
for [AS 39.35.340] (j) are not in addition to any costs outlined
in subsection (b). Thus, there are not two costs to claim
mlitary service for health eligibility, so only one cost wll
be char ged.

3:56:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT asked for clarification on the fiscal
not e expl anati on.

M5. LEA answered that HB 116 has a zero fiscal note. The cost
to using up to five years to count towards health eligible is
borne entirely by the nenber. It is an actuarial cost at tine
of his/her retirenent. Since there isn't any inpact on the
system the division submtted a zero fiscal note.

3:57.:26 PM

CHAIR OLSON asked if it would be simlar to the mlitary buy in.
MS. LEA answered yes.

3:57:36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT referred to page 2, [Section 3], of HB
116. He asked what this |anguage neans and how it will affect a
peace officer who is retiring, and to further explain how that
woul d affect their retirenment paynents of benefits.

M5. LEA explained a provision in PERS states that any claim for
service which will reduce a nenber's paynent below what it would

be absent claimng the service cannot use the service. Thi s
paragraph refers to that provision. The division would want to

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 13- April 9, 2014



be able to use the service whether or not it had an effect on
the benefit.

3:58:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT asked whether that was the reason for
t he | anguage change in Version U

M5. LEA, after first mulling it over, answered yes.
3:59: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT pointed out that the profession of police
officer is a "young nman's job," which is a reason for this bill
She anticipated this bill is a cost savings neasure. It will
allow police officers and firefighters to buy up to five years
of mlitary nedical service as a "buy back." In turn, this
allows nunicipalities to hire |lower cost enployees. She said
that she did not wish to disrespect any ol der officers.

4:01:16 PM

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 116.

CHAI R OLSON renoved hi s objection.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said he was glad to see the bill again
in commttee. He characterized the bill as a "win-win" that
gives great discretion to the firefighters and police officers
to choose whether to use the program

4:02:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD noved to report the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 116, | abeled 28-LS0398\U, Wayne, 2/25/14
out of conmttee wth individual recommendations and the
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB
116(L&C) was reported fromthe House Labor and Comrerce Standi ng
Commi ttee.

The commttee took a brief at ease.

HB 384- ALASKA M NI MUM WAGE

4:04:13 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -14- April 9, 2014



CHAI R OLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 384, "An Act increasing the mninmm wage; and
providing for an effective date."

4:04:19 PM

TOM WRI GHT, Staff, Representative Mke Chenault, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, stated that HB 384 would raise the m nimum wage to
$8.75 per hour until Decenber 31, 2015 and not less than $9.75
per hour on or after January 1, 2016 until Decenber 31, 2017.
This language mrrors a proposed mninmm wage initiative.
Thereafter, the mnimm wage would be adjusted annually for
i nflation. The Departnent of Labor & W rkforce Devel opnent
comm ssioner w | calculate the adjustnent for inflation
annual ly, on or before Septenber 30th for the follow ng cal endar
year. The |anguage, as previously stated, is simlar to that
found in the ballot initiative to increase the m ni num wage.

M. WRIGHT said, that According to Alaskans for a Fair M ninmm
Wage, [which he read from the sponsor statenent - original
punct uation provided]:

After having the highest mnimum wage in the nation
for the four decades follow ng statehood, Al aska has
fallen in recent years to 17th place anong the states.
A single parent working full-time, 2080 hours at the
current mni nrum wage of $7.75, earns $16, 120 annually,
| ess than two-thirds of the poverty rate for a famly
of three in Al aska. Had the Al aska Legislature not
repealed in 2003 the nodest cost of I|iving adjustnent
mechani sm they had approved |less than a year earlier
in the bill raising the mninmm wage to $7.15, that
wage today woul d be $9.53 today.

MR WRIGHT said that this legislation is an opportunity to

ensure the mnimum wage is inflation-proofed. Wil e many
Al askans support increasing the mninum wage, the ballot
initiative sponsors have voiced concern that if the legislature
passes HB 384 it wll repeat events that occurred in 2002 and

2003. He explained that in 2002, the |egislature passed a bil
simlar to an approved voter initiative, thus renoving the

petition from the ballot. The following year the legislature
passed a bill renoving the annual inflation adjustnment.
4:07: 05 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 15- April 9, 2014



MR WRIGHT said he guessed he could speak on behalf of the
sponsor, that it is not the sponsor's intent to nake simlar
changes in the next l|egislative session or the follow ng one
however, he noted that one legislature can't bind future

| egi sl at ures. He noted that the legislative nenbers for the
next legislature are not yet known and wll depend on the
voters. He enphasized that it is not Speaker Chenault's intent

to repeat the events that occurred in 2002-2003.

MR  WRIGHT stated that passing legislation to increase the

mnimum wage wll guarantee Alaskans get a mninmum wage
i ncrease, including inflation-proofing. A ballot proposition
does not guarantee voters will pass the neasure. He said that
passing a bill this legislative session would further allow for

a strong public process through |egislative hearings and public
testinmony, which is a process that would be lacking if the
m ni mum wage i s increased through an initiative process.

4:08: 08 PM

CHAI R OLSON said he has spoken to several union |obbyists in the
bui | di ng. He suggested that their nenbers e-mail witten
testinmony to the conmttee. He indicated the commttee has
received over 100 e-mails or letters against the bill. He noted
some e-mails or letters have not yet been entered into the
system but he anticipated that woul d happen within a few days.

MR WRIGHT referred to information 1in nenbers’ packet s,
including the language for a letter from the Departnent of Law
[dated June 20, 2013]; the initiative petition bill |anguage; a
summari zing of the Alaska Wage and Hour Act; an NCLS m nimm
wage survey of states; and several recent newspaper articles.

4:09:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON referred to the second paragraph of the
sponsor st atenent. He said he was a legislative aide in 2002.
He asked for further clarification on why the |legislature
"undi d" what it had done the prior year.

MR. WRIGHT answered he cannot speak about actions that were
taken by prior Speaker [Pete] Kott. He said he did not want to
i nterpret what happened.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said the sponsor statenent also states

that over the next 11 days that the legislature can give the
bill strong public process. He asked whether this would also

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 16- April 9, 2014



happen during the initiative process over the next four or seven
nmont hs, dependi ng on when the ballot initiative is heard.

MR. WRIGHT said he couldn't answer that either since he doesn't
know about the sponsor's plans to conduct hearings or what that
process would entail.

4:10: 41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked why the bill identically matches
the initiative and does not have another figure. He said that
the bill uses a mnimm wage of $8.75 per hour next year and

$9.75 the year after that and a consunmer price index (CPl). He
asked whether it is intentional or coincidental that the bill
| anguage natches the initiative.

MR. WRI GHT suggested the legislative legal and research |awers
coul d better answer that question.

4:11: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON acknow edged that the |anguage in HB
384 is identical with the ballot initiative petition bil

| anguage for increasing Alaska s mninum wage. He asked the
reason the language in HB 384 is identical to the initiative
For exanple, the bill requestor could have decided on $8.76 per

hour or $9.12 per hour.

MR. WRIGHT answered that HB 384 followed the language in the
initiative.

4:11:55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON noted that there is nothing in the
menbers' bill packets from the food and beverage industry. He
asked whet her he knew their positions.

MR. WRI GHT responded that he did not know.

CHAIR OLSON related his understanding that the offer to comrent
was made to all wunions. He certainly hasn't been purging any
letters.

4:12: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said that he did not think the packet
had been purged. He expressed an interest in the breaking point

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -17- April 9, 2014



for small and |arge businesses. He asked whether the bill
shoul d be $10 or $11 per hour instead of $8.75.

MR, WRIGHT said it would be up to the legislature to decide.
4:12:50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER remarked that this issue has been around
and he has read national news on it. He asked whether people
plan on a confortable |ife based on a m ni num wage.

MR WRIGHT offered his belief that it would be tough to be
confortabl e on m ninum wages even if they were based on the new
proposed scal e.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER remarked that he didn't see anything in
the Dbill to indicate this was designed to guarantee a
confortable life or a prosperous career. More to the point,
he's seen discussion that a mninmum wage is considered a
transition wage that a person earns while learning a job.

Additionally, it could supplenment other wages earned in the
househol d. He recalled hearing that one couldn't afford to buy
a house and feed five kids on mninmm wages. He said, "O
course you can't. That's not what a mninum wage is about.” He
continued by sharing he once earned a mninum wage and he
learned skills and was able to get a better job. He
characterized it as a transition through mninmm wage. It

wasn't where he stopped but was where he started in his career.

MR. WRI GHT responded that he recalled baling hay at $.75 per
hour .

CHAI R OLSON guessed that nost of the people in the room may have
started out at the m ni num wage.

MR. VWRI GHT said, "Or less.”

4:14:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON commented that the legislature can pass a
| aw and overrule it the next year. |Its |ife span can be short,
he said. He asked for the mninumlife span of an initiative.

MR. WRI GHT answered the m nimum span is two years.

4:14:42 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- April 9, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT referred to a "cruise ship" initiative a
few years ago that did not adhere to the single subject rule and

had six subjects. She recalled that they were able to nodify
three of the subjects. Thus an initiative can be nodified but
what can and cannot be nodified is limted. She imagined if

this initiative passed that the legislature could adjust
nunbers, but it would need to fall within a certain range. She
suggested it was simlar to the requirenent for reporting
of fshore sales of products. She said that she passed a |aw
several years ago related to initiatives that required the
| i eutenant governor to provide "pro and con" discussions twce
in each of the judicial districts. Additionally, it required a
|l egislative committee to neet, and although the legislature
couldn't change the initiative the commttee could discuss the
pros and cons of the initiative. She argued that initiatives
end up being "bunper sticker slogans." Wth respect to the
clean water initiative, she commented that everyone wants clean
water. She said people want to get paid. She recalled that she
earned $3.91 with her first job and that led to her deciding to
get education to obtain a better job. She said, "That's what
m ni mum wage was to ne. It was a place to start to nove up and
to continue to nove up and progress.”

4:16:58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT di sagreed that the m ni num wage shoul d be
a "living wage," but it should be a starting point for teenagers
who can work thenselves up to better wages. She reiterated that
people want a fair wage so that is what the bunper sticker for
this initiative wll say. She questioned whether the m ninum
wage would be for those 19 years old or if it would apply to
soneone who is 50 vyears old wth a master's degree in
psychol ogy. She offered her belief that is why initiatives are
dangerous unless they are appropriately vetted. She preferred
to have a bill in which full discussions can occur, openly and
on the record, wth news agencies reporting the actions so the
public can better understand the full ramfications. She argued
that this is a nuch better way of passing |laws. She related her
under st andi ng that the drafters of Al aska's Constitution
provided for an initiative process; however, the state is at the
poi nt when one group doesn't get their way the first thing they
do is pull out an initiative rather than to nake the case for
sonmeone to carry a bill for them While she is not against
initiatives, she thought the best way for legislation in Al aska
is through the commttee process. Her district elected her so
she represents those 17,000 people and mekes decisions on their
behal f. |f she doesn't make the right decisions, the voters

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- April 9, 2014



will not reelect her, she said. She reiterated that initiatives
create "bunper sticker ads" that can be msleading. Again, she

would rather have a bill before the legislature that goes
through the committee process with feedback from constituents
st at ewi de. She pointed out that many wunions are in the
commttee room objecting to this |egislation. She predicted
that many people will object to the bill in the next 11 days

many of which will be small "nom and pop" businesses. She said
that this bill my kill many of the small businesses and that
scares her. She added that it is wise to take up the m ni num
wage bill this session instead of having a ballot fight that may

not be as truthful as it should be when di scussing policy.
4:19: 51 PM

CHAIR OLSON commented that he carried the current m ninum wage
bill on the floor in 2008 or 2009, and it has not been touched.
He recalled the increase was $.75 above the federal rate, which
was reasonable at the tine.

MR WRIGHT said he wuld add to Representative Mllet's

comments, that even if HB 384 doesn't pass it wll still
represent a vetting process. In response to Representative
Josephson, he was not sure what hearings the initiative's
sponsors have in mnd, if they do have hearings in mnd;
however, nobst people will not attend so they wll get their
information from an advertising canpaign - good or bad. He
concluded that at least this bill provides a process.

4:21:09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  JOSEPHSON asked to respond to sonme  of
Representative MIlett's coments.

CHAIR OLSON asked him to hold his response under the conmmttee
di scussions on the bill.

4:21:22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON, relative to Representative Mllett's
comments, said the sponsor statenent seens to indicate that the
process in 2003 was unfair and resulted in a wage that was mnuch
lower than it would have been today. He asked whether he
understood the frustration of the 50,000 signatories of the
initiative and why these people would renmenber what happened 11
years ago and would rather "roll the dice" and take a chance
with the voters.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 20- April 9, 2014



MR WRIGHT said that he could understand their frustration;
however, he said he cannot speak on behalf of earlier
| egi sl ative action. He said, "Quite frankly, | don't think al
50,000 signatories realized what happened in 2002-2003. I'd be
surpri sed. But again, | can understand why the backers of the
initiative are frustrated. | conpletely understand that. And
does history repeat itself? | hope not in this case, but again,
that's a question you all will have to answer, not ne."

4:22:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON surmised that the Dbackers of the
initiative would know they have a result that would be secure
for two years if the legislature |eaves it al one. He asked how
the legislature could offer voters sonmething that the initiative
offers, which is two years of legitimte protection.

MR WRIGHT said he didn't know.
4:23: 30 PM

GARY M LLER said he is one of the 43,489 who signed the m nimum
wage initiative. He stated that the initiative required
signatures of 10 percent of the qualified voters who voted in
the preceding general election, including at l|least 30 of the
House districts, of which at least 7 percent voted in the
precedi ng general election. He related that the referendum took
t housands of hours of work and thousands of dollars to conplete.
The Al aska Constitution allows the citizens of Al aska to enact
| egislation through the initiative process. He said there is
nothing else as denocratic as the initiative process. He asked
why the legislature would deny the voters the opportunity to
vote on this referendum It didn't nake any sense to him he
said. He thanked nenbers for the opportunity to testify.

4:25:02 PM

NANCY COURTNEY asked to testify against HB 384. She said that
| ast year she spent hours gathering signatures to get a
citizen's initiative on the ballot to allow Al askans to vote to
raise the mnimm wage in Al aska. Citizens collected the
necessary signatures, and the initiative is currently schedul ed
to be on the primary ballot in August, although she understood
the vote may be postponed until the Novenber election. In 2001

a simlar citizen's initiative collected over 50,000 signatures
to place the matter on the Novenber ballot; however, prior to

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -21- April 9, 2014



the vote, the legislature passed a mninmm wage bill in 2002
In 2003, the legislature renoved the Cost of Living Allowance
(COLA) and instead of having a current mni mum wage of $9.53 per
hour, the current mninum wage is $7.75. She remarked that she
has heard sone |legislators say the [conposition of] the
|l egislature is not the same as in 2003 and that nobody has any

intention of renmoving the COLA from this bill, if it were to
pass. However, there is "nothing in stone" that says anyone has
control over what future legislatures wll do. She feared a

repeat of what happened in 2003 wi Il happen in 2015. She said
that 11 legislators who voted on the matter in 2003 are sitting
| egi sl ators today. She rem nded nenbers that Alaskans have
worked very hard to get the mninmum wage initiative on the
ballot. She said, "W have the right to vote on it and when it
passes and becones |aw to have the law in place for at least two
years before the legislature can repeal it." She thanked
menbers and urged nenbers to vote agai nst HB 384.

4:27:43 PM

BARBARA HUFF TUCKNESS, Director, Governnmental and Legislative
Affairs, Teansters Local 959, stated she was one of the hundreds

who gathered signatures for the mninum wage initiative. She
said it is very difficult to get initiatives through the process
now. She said the Teansters Local 959 opposes HB 384. It has
nothing to do with the m ninum wage. In fact, she agrees that
no one on the conmttee or in either body of the |egislature can
guarantee that the bill won't be changed next year since
| egislators don't know if they wll be re-elected. She said
that if voters are allowed to vote on this initiative at |east
their wishes will be heard and the pressure wll be taken off

the legislators. She urged nenbers to vote no.
4:29: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT asked whether people who were gathering
si gnatures were paid.

M5. HUFF TUCKNESS answered that she was not paid to gather
si gnhat ur es.

4:30:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT said he would be curious what wage
gat herers were paid. He pointed out sonething else that cannot
be guaranteed is that the initiative will pass. He acknow edged
that the polls predict it wll pass; however, there is no

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -22- April 9, 2014



guarantee. In fact, he has seen voters vote against initiatives
that seened to be popular, such as the coastal zone managenent
initiative. The difference between that initiative and the bill
currently before the commttee is that the legislature failed

coastal zone managenent (CZM. It created such havoc that
peopl e obtained the required signatures to put the CZM i ssue on
the ballot. Even though everyone thought it would pass it
fail ed. If the legislature passes HB 384, it is a way for

Al askans to obtain a m nimum wage increase. He enphasi zed t hat
it is not intended to change any part of this bill.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT answered that if this bill noves through

it my help Alaskans and will take care of an issue. He said
this is the only guarantee that the mninmum wage will increase.
He acknow edged that the question is whether the legislature
will not change the |aw again; however, it is his intent to keep
the bill for two years. There isn't any guarantee he wll be
el ected or be in the sane position. He said that it is a good
process. Again, just because an initiative is on the ballot
does not guarantee the voters will pass it.

4:33:19 PM

M5. HUFF TUCKNESS agreed wth him that there 1isn't any
guar antee; however, at |east through the initiative process the
voters will have gone to the polls and will have spoken. She
stated that if the voters do pass the initiative it wll
guarantee it for two years. In the event voters didn't pass it,
she suggested that it would be likely constituents would be
before each of you asking for a $10.10 mninum wage. She
concurred that there really isn't any guarantee.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT wondered about the wllingness of the
| egislature to seek a mninum wage bill in the event the
initiative process failed. He suggested it was likely that the
| egislature would say, "The voters voted and the voters nmade
their statenment.”

4:34:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked how |ong she has worked in the
building [for the Teansters 959].

M5. HUFF TUCKNESS answered that she has been comng to Juneau as
the legislative liaison for Teansters 959 since 1994.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 23- April 9, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether this bill hearing is
largely due to the initiative process.

MS. HUFF TUCKNESS answered that it seens to be the case.
4:35:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether the signatories of the
initiative would rather be defeated at polls in August or
Novenber or to see the legislature roll it back in 2015.

CHAI R OLSON pointed out that is not in HB 384.

M5. HUFF TUCKNESS answered that she was not sure she could
respond since it is a theoretical question. She al so said she
can't speak on behalf of the rest of the voters.

4:35:58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT asked how many tines ballot initiatives
to nove the capital have occurred and how many times the
initiative passed or fail ed.

CHAI R OLSON di d not know.
4:36: 25 PM

JAKE WMETCALFE, Executive Director, Public Safety Enployees
Associ ation (PSEA), said he doesn't support this bill since the
m ni mum wage i s enough. He said he grew up in Juneau and began
wor ki ng when he was 5 years old. After high school he worked at
Juneau Cold Storage for $11.25 in 1979. He went to Europe in
the fall and college in the spring. He didn't have [financial]
help from his parents. Last summer his son worked in Bristol
Bay cleaning fish and earned $8 per hour. He offered his belief
that sonmething isn't right when his wages 30 years ago were nore
than what his son earned in 2013. At the sane tinme, the cost of
living has increased at 2.5 percent per year. Costs for health
care and col |l ege have gone up, but people are making |ess than
he did in 1979. He remarked that it isn't good for anyone. He
has heard transition jobs nentioned and his sunmer job was a
transition job. However, he also worked with people of all ages
who made a career working on fish. These people nmade a |iving
wage in 1979, but people don't make a living wage today. He
suggested that if the |egislature passes HB 384, people will not
be given a |iving wage. He suggested the m ni num wage starting
poi nt should be $15 per hour, which is what Seattle's SeaTac

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 24- April 9, 2014



airport has done. This bill doesn't provide a living wage. He
further suggested the conmttee consider anending it so that
people who work in these transition jobs earn a living wage -
whether they are kids or 50 year-olds trying to support a
famly. In response to a question, he answered that his first
j ob was shining shoes at the | ocal barber shop.

4:39:31 PM

MR. METCALFE said Al askans should have a Iliving wage and
shouldn't live in poverty just because they work in transition
j obs. He suggested that people earning a mninmm wage are
living life in poverty. He concluded his testinony by saying,
"That's not right in this country, especially in this state,
which is the richest state in the union.”

4:40: 00 PM

CHRI S ASHENBRENNER stated that she was very involved in the CZM
initiative, which cane before the legislature as a bill with the
sanme | anguage as the initiative. It did not pass, but at the
time the governor and nmany legislators said, "Let the people
speak.” Wth respect to the voters voting it down, she reported
that $3.5 mllion was raised to oppose the initiative;, whereas

$600, 000 [was raised in support of the initiative] which also
i ncluded the signature drive. Sonmetimes the playing field is a

little nore level than others, she said. Young people aren't
al ways the ones earning mninmm wages. She worked with people
com ng out of poverty, domestic violence victins, and

immgrants, and she said "there's a | ot of people out there that
are supporting famlies and they're working on mninmm wage
jobs.” She asked nenbers to keep this in mnd. She pointed out
that initiatives are vetted in public hearings in four different
regions, held by the I|ieutenant governor. The m ni mum wage
initiative will be publically vetted. She urged nenbers not to
pass the bill; "let the people speak."

4:42: 33 PM

ED FLANAGAN, Chair, Alaskans for a Fair Mnimm Wige, stated
that he would normally address the nerits of the bill and debate
the issue. He said he won't due to the process, which is a bit
of a sham He suggested nenbers vote no because the [supporters
of the initiative] will take their chances with the electorate.
Everyone knows what is going on in this situation. Thi s
| egi slature has shown no interest in fixing the mninmm wage
since the legislature "broke it" in 2003. He said the bill that

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 25- April 9, 2014



Chair dson carried happened because Al aska's mninum wage,
whi ch had been the highest in country for 40 years and had been
$0.50 over federal mininum wage since 1959 (when the federal
m ni mum wage was $1.00), was about to be eclipsed by the federal
m ni mum wage, because when the |egislature repealed the cost-of-
living allowance in 2003, it did not even put back on the $0.50-
over-federal anmpbunt. He recalled in 2002, at a tine when Al aska
was about to be surpassed, a bill canme up at $8.75 and the CP

[ consuner price index], "which all of a sudden you're interested
in correcting," but the only thing that passed was the $0.50
over the federal m ninmm wage, which was "better than nothing"
at $7.75. He reported that the m ni mum wage has increased $0.60
in 11 years. He predicted that had it not been eviscerated, the
m ni mum wage would be $9.53 per hour. He enphasized that "l ow
wage" workers have lost ground in this state because of the
| egislature's "bad faith action" in 2003, in particular, those
17 who voted for the bill in 2002 and later to "gut it" in 2003.

4:45: 26 PM

MR. FLANAGAN offered his belief that |ow wage workers have | ost
ground except for 2010 when the $.50 cent increase was restored.
He offered his belief that the way to correct this is through
the initiative process. There isn't anything that has been said
to convince anyone that this is not ploy to take the initiative
off the ballot. He questioned whether this bill is being
i ntroduced because folks don't want it on the ballot along with
ot her ballot neasures or to be an issue in canpaign races. He

suggested that people have overstated the i npact t hat
initiatives like this have in bringing people to the polls;
however, he imagined it could have sone inpact during close
el ecti ons. He characterized this bill as being inproper
"el ectioneering” notivation. He predicted that next year it
woul d be gutted. He found it remarkable that the National

Federation of |ndependent Business, seafood processors, and the
restaurant industry are not comng out to testify against this
bill. He observed this is the first mninmum wage bill that they
have not testified against. He offered his belief that "the fix
is on. They know what's happeni ng. This is what they want
because then, at least, they don't have to wait two years before
they can try to do a tip credit...."

MR. FLANAGAN recal l ed that the sponsor had previously introduced
a bill in 2009. The effect was that waiters and waitresses can
be paid subm ni mum wages because the tips are counted. Al aska
has never allowed it, he said. He expressed confidence that the
Al aska people wll not support it. He explained that the

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 26- April 9, 2014



initiative would reaffirm the whole provision including the tip
credit, which should protect those workers for two nore years

He predicted if HB 384 passes, the only guarantee is $1
i ncrease, which takes effect January 1, 2015. The second doll ar
is at risk and the cost of living allowance is at risk. He
reiterated that he prefers to take chances with the voters. He
said that the 69 percent approval is prior to initiating a
canpai gn. The initiative process conplied with Representative
MIllett's legislation, apparently notivated by distaste or
contenpt for the initiative process, and requires nine hearings.
The |ieutenant governor needs to hold two hearings in each of
the four judicial districts. Additionally, the joint Al aska
Judiciary Commttees recently held a hearing. There is plenty
of opportunity for hospitality retailers to work to have a bil

i nt roduced. He predicted that next year this group could do a
"tip exenption” rather than a "tip credit.” He wel coned the
[ hospitality retailers] entry into the field to oppose the
m ni mum wage during the canpaign. He predicted that the outcone

will be two to one in August or Novenber. He stated that the
Department of Labor and Wbrkforce Developnent in its statenent
of cost identified, like a fiscal note that acconpanies the
initiative, identified a small recurring cost of $83, which

should nmerit a fiscal note.
4:49:19 PM

MR. FLANAGAN expressed astonishnent that he would be in the
situation in which he is urging a no vote on a mninmm wage

bill; however, it is a "bad faith" bill - and he's sorry if
anyone takes offense at that, but he's calling it |like he sees
it. He described the rigorous initiative process, exceeding the

7 percent in 30 districts by obtaining 7 percent in 33
districts. He reported mi ssing the necessary signature by slim
margins in two additional districts. He further reported the
tally at 36,500 valid registered voters, which is 6,500 nore
than necessary. He said that 4,900 signatures were collected in
conmittee nmenbers' seven districts

MR. FLANAGAN highlighted that [the effort] is a conbination of

paid workers and vol unteers. In fact, alnost all initiatives
that are successful include paid signature gatherers. He said
that the paid signature gatherers pulled in 65 percent or 28,000
signatures and volunteers collected 15,500. He collected

several thousand signatures since it was a good way to get a
feel for how people felt about the m ni mum wage. He offered to
share anecdotes. As the poll shows, the m ninmum wage issue is a
majority across party |lines wth super majorities wth

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -27- April 9, 2014



Denocrats, undeclared, and non-partisan registered voters. I n
Ket chi kan, fol ks knew who paid m ni num wages and did not want to
support those that didn't. Smal | business owners in Sitka said
they couldn't in good conscious pay their workers |ess than $10.
In North Pole, he collected signatures at the transfer station
in a very conservative district.

MR. FLANAGAN related his informal survey based on all sorts of
coments nmade on other issues, but they signed the m ni num wage
petition, remarking it didn't go high enough. He predicted that

the initiative wll pass overwhel mngly. It is overdue, he
sai d. These folks didn't sign the petition to have the
| egi sl ature act. In fact, the legislature had 11 years to act
and make it right, but the legislature did not. The initiative
process is in Alaska's Constitution for the voters to make
things right when the |legislature doesn't do it. He

characterized the coastal zone analogy as not holding water. He
concl uded by sharing that he is passionate about this because he
was the conm ssioner of the Departnment of Labor & Wrkforce
Devel opnent in 2002, so he was basically "the bill manager"” for
the adm nistration. He had thought that the initiative process
was to help nove the bills and it did so. Lots of legislators
hel ped do what former Representative Kott did when he indicated
that the legislature take action the next year rather than to

repeal the Cost of Living Allowance two years |ater. He said,
"When I'mtold, well it's better if you pass a bill; then you
know you have it - well, | bought that bridge 12 years ago and |

feel some responsibility that he was insufficiently skeptical
that he had not pushed to let the initiative go to the ball ot
where the lives of thousands of Al askan workers in the 11 years
woul d have been materially better than they ended up as a result
of the 2003 ...."

4:54: 56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT clarified that Representative Bill
Wllians legislation in 1999 required gatherers to collect

signatures in 30 of 40 districts. She characterized her bill as
one of requiring transparency since hearings nust be held around
the state. Further, her bill required clear and concise
conversation about the pros and cons of an initiative. She
described initiative gatherers to carry a copy of the initiative
so voters <could read it. Finally, her bill required a
| egislative hearing to identify the fiscal inpacts of an
initiative, simlar to the legislative process requirenent for a
fiscal note. She argued that her bill nade the process nore
transparent but not nore difficult. She characterized this

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 28- April 9, 2014



process as one that informed voters. She expressed concern
about previous initiative processes in which the gatherers were

less than truthful. She said she doesn't hate or |oathe
initiatives; rather, it is a great process that the Al aska
Constitution allows. She said she is a fan of the initiative
process and finds it to be a necessary process; however, she
also wanted to ensure that the process was transparent. She

related a scenario in which it took two years to pass a bill
During that time, 60 legislators were able to review her bill
and inprove her bill through the |egislative process.

4:58: 06 PM

CHAIR OLSON related that M. Flanagan was one of several people
invited to testify on HB 384.

DOUG TANSY, President, Fairbanks Central Labor Council, voiced
his support for the initiative process. He asked nenbers not to
pass this bill and to allow the people of Al aska to express
their will through the initiative process. He offered his

belief that good reasons exist to be skeptical due to what has
previ ously happened. He urged nenbers not to pass bill.

5:00: 03 PM

KEVI N POVEROY, Menber, Laborers Local 942, thanked nenbers for
the opportunity to testify. He said that he has worked severa

m ni mum wage jobs and recalled it was definitely a struggle. He
has a lot of respect for the people who raise kids on m ninum
wages, which is difficult. This is sonmething that needs review

There were tines when he felt like he was "spinning his tires"”
but with the cost of living increasing that term doesn't even
seem like a fair anal ogy. He said raising the mninmum wage
woul d be a positive for the community. He said, "They say you
are only as strong as your weakest [|ink." He recognized the
struggl e people have and "he's been there and done that." He
of fered his whol ehearted support to raise the m ni mum wage.

5:02: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether he supports the bill or
the initiative process.

MR. POMEROY offered his support for the initiative process.

5:03:14 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 29- April 9, 2014



DALE FOX, President & Chief Executive Oficer, Cabaret, Hotel,
Restaurant & Retailers Association (CHARR), offered CHARR s
support for HB 384 as a reasonabl e and neasured approach and not
due to the "skullduggery" that sonme people inply but because
CHARR has observed what happened at SeaTac. He said that
reasonabl e and neasured nmakes sense whereas a $15 per hour or a
"l'iving wage" proposal does not. He commented that his 15-year-
ol d granddaughter will appreciate if the |legislature passes this
bill because it wll nmean a raise for her. The CHARR nenbers
woul d have preferred this bill be introduced in January because
they were hoping for relief for owners, as well; however, CHARR
menbers did not want to slow down the process. He offered his
belief that whether HB 384 or the initiative passes, it provides
a reasonabl e and neasured approach.

5:04:32 PM

JED WH TTAKER of fered his belief that the m ni num wage shoul d be
increased to $20 mininumwith an effective date of January 2014.
He nmakes this suggestion based on research done by the
Departnment of Labor & W rkforce Developnent (DLWD) and the
Departnent of Health and Social Services and using the poverty

gui del i nes. In Alaska Economi c Trends, published by the DLWD,
an August 2013 article noted that Anchorage had the second
hi ghest nedian rent at $1,154 per nonth. He reported that

Kodi ak had the nbst expensive with a nmedian of $1, 365 per nonth,
Fai rbanks is $1,239 per nonth; Juneau is $1,250 per nonth; and
the statewide nedian is $1,119 per nonth. Additionally, the
Sept enber 2009 issue related that econom st Caroline Schultz
said that AHFC considers housing affordable when it costs no
nore than 30 percent of a person's incone. He suggested that
for a nedian two-bedroom apartnment to be affordable a renter
nmust earn at least 90 percent of the average or $42,300 per
year, which translates into a wage of approximately $20 per

hour . Ms. Shultz further wote that in order to afford an
average two-bedroom apartnent in Anchorage, a household would
need to earn the equivalent of 2.7 mninmmwage jobs. He al so

reported that Alaska ranked 10th in being the npbst expensive
rental market in 2009.

MR. WH TTAKER related that according to a DHSS survey in 2009,
in order to afford a two-bedroom apartnent, a worker would need
to earn $19.83 per hour in Anchorage, $24.85 in Barrow, $19.31
in Fairbanks, $16.44 in Kenai, $18.87 in the Matanuska-Susitna
Bor ough, $24.63 in Juneau, and $21.62 per hour in Ketchikan. He
further reported the federal poverty guideline at $14,350 for a
singl e person per year, and $19,300 for a household of two. The

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 30- April 9, 2014



guideline wused by nmany federal progr ans, including the
Suppl emental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP), the nonthly
gross income nust be at or below 130 percent of the poverty
line, which is $25,400 for a famly of three per year. He
stated that HB 384 would raise the mninmum wage to $8.75 by
Decenber 2015; however, a m ninum wage worker with a household
of two, would still be below the federal poverty incone
gui del ines and would qualify for food stanps.

5:09: 30 PM

MR. VWH TTAKER offered his belief that workers deserve a "living
wage" and governnent should not be subsidizing the private
sector because the private sector relies on the government to
feed and house it workers. He said that MDonal ds and Wl - Mart

have been called the biggest welfare queens in Anerica. It's a
m snoner to say these jobs are transitional |obs. Peopl e need
to work and if these are the only jobs available the workers
will be forced to take them The conpanies |ike Wal-Mart
actually instruct enployees how to get on welfare since their
salaries are insufficient. He found it strange that HB 384 has
NO Sponsors or CcoSponsors. He urged nenbers to anend the bill

to increase the mninmum wage to $20 per hour since that reflects
the actual cost of living in Alaska. He said if Al askans are to
be "free people" in a "free society" and not wage slaves it is
necessary to increase the mni mum wage.

5:11:54 PM

ZEBULON WOCDMVAN, Menber, Labors Local 942, stated that he is a
20-year nmenber. He recalled a mninmm wage bill in 2009, but it
was to reduce the mninmum wage for tip enployees through tip
credits. Enpl oyees are paid less than mninmm wages and
gratuities fromcustoners nmake up the difference.

CHAIR OLSON reninded himthat this bill is HB 384.
MR. WOODMVAN suggested that HB 384 was introduced on April 4 to

preenpt the initiative. He expressed concern about the suspect
notives and suggested that to help workers the |egislature would

go well past the mninmm wage to a "living wage."” The current
m ni mum wage initiative, by reaffirmng a long term ban on tips
credit, will protect tip enployees from efforts to reduce their

pay. Unlike the 2002 initiative, which called for one |arge
i ncrease on the wage, the current neasure phases it in over two
years. In the event the legislature supplants the initiative,
along with the COLA, they could elimnate or reduce the second

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 31- April 9, 2014



dollar increase and the COLA by January 2016. He concl uded by
asking nmenbers to please |et Alaskans vote on ballot neasure 3
and kill HB 384.

5:14: 30 PM

BRYAN | MJS, Menber, Laborers Local 942, said he is a husband
father, and organizer. He said he did not understand this "nean
spirited race to the bottom" He said it seens easy to bal ance
budgets on the backs of people and "kick the little guy while
he's down." He said that no one expects a m ni rum wage worker
to live in the "house on the hill,"” but it would be nice if the
not her or father working 40 hours per week didn't need to be on
public assistance to feed their Kkids. He said he deals wth
wor ki ng people on a daily basis, and those earning $15 per hour
are still on public assistance, day care assistance, and renta
assi st ance. He asserted that if the intention of HB 384 is not
to do end run then why not leave the initiative on the ball ot
and let the voters decide. He questioned assurances that the
sane thing as in 2003 woul d not happen next year. He concl uded
by saying that he trusts the voters and working people of
Al aska. He urged nmenbers to kill HB 384.

5:16:51 PM

WALTER ROBI NSON, Menber, International Brotherhood of Electrica
Wrkers (IBEW Local 1547, questioned why this bill was
introduced so late in the session. He said he would hate to see
HB 384 pass and be stripped to nothing. He stated that the
| ower wage workers can't afford to "take another hit" and go
backwar ds. He related that he has spent many hours collecting
signatures for the Alaska mninmum wage initiative and has seen
first-hand how inportant this initiative is to the people of

Al aska. Over 36,000 signatures were gathered. He said he
t hinks the people have spoken. He asked nenbers not to nove
this bill forward and to |let the people vote on ballot neasure 3

on August 19. He offered his belief that it is the right and
just decision for the future of Al aska's workers.

5:18: 07 PM

KARM SI NGH, Power Line representative, International Brotherhood
of Electrical Wrkers (IBEW Local 1547, stated he participated
by gathering signatures. He has contracts in Kotzebue, None,
Barrow, Fairbanks, Healy, and Delta. He said he doesn't observe
kids working at mninmm wage; instead, people ages 30-40 years
old are working mninm wage. These people work part tine

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 32- April 9, 2014



because no one wants to pay for their insurance. Sonme are
wor king 30 hours at one job and 30 hours at another job trying
to make ends neet. He said he would like to see the "working
poor" get a "bunp up" and he encouraged conmmittee nenbers to |et
t he peopl e speak. He said, "I could live with a no from the
people, but | don't trust politicians. | never have. I'm a
non- parti san. Both political groups are corrupt as far as |I'm
concerned. So please let the people speak. Thank you."

5:20: 07 PM

CHRYSTAL SCHCENROCK, Business Omer, said that she is a bar
owner and acknow edged that perhaps there should be a small
increase in the mninmm wage. She pointed out that she has a
small business in a very small conmunity. She stated that she
can't afford those increases. She has two enpl oyees who work
si x hours each because she can't afford to pay them She told
menbers that things are rough in N kiski, yet she nust pay for

permts, licenses, insurance, and utilities. She inforned
menbers that business is slow, things are tough, and she can't
afford an increase in nmninmm wage beyond $.50 per hour. She
said that if it increases she will have to close her doors. She
reported that there are only three bars and liquor stores in
Ni ki ski. She reiterated that she has done everything she can.
5:22: 34 PM

DANIEL LYNCH said he is affiliated with working hunman beings.
He encouraged nmenbers to let the initiative go to the polls. He
pointed out the numerous people involved in the process to
col l ect signatures. The legislature has had 12 years since the
| ast "sabotage” to the working poor. He questioned the intent to
address the issue the past 12 years. He recalled Representative
Mllet's testinony and responded. He said that he knows what an
initiative is and is sinple. It doesn't say anything about
living wage, nortgage, education, or better jobs in the future.
He reiterated that it a sinple initiative. He characterized his
view of the working poor as earning a mninmm wage but only
being able to afford a cardboard box to live in and food stanps.
He suggested that these people are provided a reason to drink
and commt crines. He suggested that the legislature take no
action and |l et the people vote.

5:24: 21 PM

VI NCE BELTRAM, President, Al aska AFL-CIO (AFL-CI O, stated that
the AFL-CI O represents 50,000 to 55,000 union nenbers in Al aska,

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 33- April 9, 2014



but he advocates for all workers, union and nonunion alike. He
said that passage of HB 384 would circunvent the public process
at this tine. He suggested that if HB 384 had been introduced
at the beginning of the session, it nay have had tine to be
vetted properly. He pointed out that the |egislature has about
two weeks |eft and many issues to contend with and insufficient
time to adequately discuss this issue in a public process,
particularly since this bill does not have other conmttee
referral s. He expressed concern that the public process may be
cut short in terns of HB 384. He suggested that the public
process woul d be better served by letting the people vote on the
m nimum wage initiative. There wll have been nearly four
nmont hs of discussion to hear from both sides of the issue. He
i nformed nenbers he sent an e-mail to all nmenbers yesterday that
hi ghlighted the AFL-Cl O s vi ews.

MR. BELTRAM infornmed nenbers that he has never been in the
position to advocate against sonmething that the average Al askan
mght view as "a positive for Al aska workers" but because of
this issue’s specific history it is a nmuch |larger issue,
although it is not a sinple one. He acknow edged that previous
testifiers have covered the 2002-2003 actions. He related his
understanding that several oil and gas representatives are
| obbying for the bill since they did not want it to be on ball ot
with the SB 21 referendum He said that he has spoken to the
Alaska O and Gas Association (AOGA) and he is confortable that
AOGA is not advocating on the mninmm wage issue. He further
related his understanding that others in the oil industry have
indicated their intent to advocate for HB 384. This action
casts a pall over the issue. It seens |like an unseemy way to
try to influence the elections. Certainly, he did not wsh to
suggest that this is the sponsor's goal. He recalled and agreed
with previous testimony by M. Fox, CHARR who had stated he
wi shed the process had been initiated in January.

5:28:51 PM

MR. BELTRAM related his understanding that other folks in the
hospitality industry have been advocating for passage for the

bill with the intent to advocate for a "tip credit" in the next
| egi sl ative session. He remarked that this is punitive only to
the | ow wage workers who work hard for tips. He said it is a
little dubious that people are relying on a poll as
justification for good public policy. He commented that he
received a nice e-mail from Representative Hawker in which he
stated, "Good policy is good policy - no matter how it cones
about . " He couldn't agree nore. Good public policy can't be

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 34- April 9, 2014



vetted in a week. He recalled the sponsor statenment indicates
that the | egislature cannot bind future |egislatures.

5:30:16 PM

MR. BELTRAM asked to address a few points. Representati ve
Saddl er suggested the mninum wage as a starting point or
transitional wage, but not a "living wage." Actually, nationa

figures show that nore than 25 percent of mninmum wage workers
are supporting at least one child. Additionally, Representative
MIllett suggested that this wage is often earned by teens, which
is true. He said that when he was 16 years old the m ni mum wage

was about $2 per hour. He suggested that the trends have
shifted and currently 14 percent of the workers earning under
$10 are teens, which neans 86 percent are adults. He al so

reported that 64 percent were females so unfortunately it isn't
as much of a transitional wage as it historically has been.

MR. BELTRAM testified in opposition to HB 384. The AFL-CI O
wants the initiative to be heard by the people and give them an
opportunity to "weigh in" not because the bill should have been
introduced a long tine ago, but the union has seen what has
happened in the past, which unfortunately gives us pause.

CHAIR OLSON reported that his witten testinony was received.

MR. BELTRAM estinmated that well over 100 letters have been
subm tted, but there hasn't been a |l ot of tine.

5:33:31 PM

CHAIR OLSON renmarked that a nunber of comittee nenbers also
serve on the House Resources Standing Commttee. He said that
he has not had one oil industry representative approach him even
t hough he has been spending 4-6 hours a day with many of them

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked to correct his view for the record.
He recalled that he previously said, "A mninmm wage can serve
either as a transitional wage or learning wage, or as a

suppl emrental wage that wll boost other wages earned in a
househol d. " He recalled seeing a Pew Research Center report
that said that 75 percent of those earning federal m ninmum wage
or lower fall in the ages of 16-24; and 25 percent earning a

m ni num wage are ages 25 and ol der

5:35: 03 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 35- April 9, 2014



JULIA SEYMOUR, Reverend, Lutheran Church of Hope, stated that
she serves for the Lutheran Church of Hope in Anchorage, which
is part of the Evangelical Lutheran Church in Anmerica (ELCA).
She related that her church provides support to Lutheran Socia
Services of Alaska and outreach efforts for Catholic Social

Services in Anchorage. She asked the conmmttee to stop this
bill in conmttee or to vote against HB 384. More than 100
famlies gather in her church's parking lot to receive fresh
food from the food bank. In recent nonths, she has held

di scussions regarding Medicare, which has |led her to understand
sone of the significant statistics that retirees and senior
citizens face. She suggested that senior citizens require good
care for elders, but workers are not willing to work for $7.75
per hour. She advocated for an increase in the mninmm wage

She suggested that her congregation wants to have the m ninum
wage initiative conme before the voters. She suggested that an
i ncrease of $1 per hour could positively inmpact an annual sal ary
by $2,500, which could provide for first and last nonth's rent.

Al t hough she could go on at |ength about scripture, she pointed
out the nunber of tinmes caring for the poor surfaces. She
stated that human needs include food, shelter, and dignity.

Peopl e who vote in the state take the tinme, effort and noney to
have the dignity to vote. She cautioned against circunventing
the will of the voters. She asked nenbers to recall Al aska's
Constitution, in particular, Section 7.5  and in the nane of
public welfare, urged nenbers to let the bill die.

REVERAND SEYMOUR asked nenbers to consult their conscience when
considering what providing for public welfare neans. She
suggested that pushing this bill forward and potentially
repeati ng what happened in 2002-2003, or denying the conmmon good
of a mninum wage increase that can inprove the health,
wel | being, and dignity of Alaskans and their famlies should be
cont enpl at ed. She al so suggested telling hard working nmen and
wonen that they are not doing enough, pushes theminto a pool in
which they are struggling not to drown. She further suggested
that people need to exercise their legal rights by having the
opportunity to vote on an increased m ninum wage. She said if
menbers believe that providing for the public welfare neans
granting the needs and desires of the powerful, the noneyed, the
| oudest, and the established over the little, the least, and the
lost in the system that choice would clearly be signaled by
nmoving this bill forward or by voting yes on HB 384. She said
doing so would denonstrate that the commttee is deliberately
choosing to ignore the political desire of Al askans who have
petitioned for the current ballot initiative as well as choosing
to ignore the fiscal needs of fellow citizens and the dignity of

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 36- April 9, 2014



those who desire to support thenselves and their famlies with
honest wor k.

5:40: 57 PM

REVERAND SEYMOUR said that given the |legislature history on the
m ni mum wage issue people cannot help but to expect an
historical repeat, which is that nmenbers will push it forward
and "gut it" before it is fully inplenented. She offered her
belief that if nmenbers let the bill die or vote no that the
| egi slature can strike a blow against the cynicism that infects
t he popul ous. Menbers can say that work, workers, and working
matters in Alaska. She stated that continuing with HB 384 w |
contribute to a greater sense of distrust and indicate disdain
for the Alaska's Constitution, public welfare, and public
process for thousands of working Al askans who cannot mnmake ends
meet but still want to believe that this is "the great land."

5:41: 49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD asked if M. Seymour is from Eagle
Ri ver.

REVERAND SEYMOUR said she lives in Eagle River but works in
Anchor age. In further response to a question, she said she
represents a church in Anchorage in the Turnagain comunity, but
she lives in Eagle River near the nature center.

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD clarified that she is not representing a
church in Eagle River.

REVERAND SEYMOUR answered that she represents Lutheran Church of
Hope on Northern Lights Boul evard.

5:43: 37 PM

PAT FALON asked nenbers not to support the bill and to let the
peopl e of Al aska vote on the mninmumwage initiative. He stated
that the support is evident by all the signatures it took to get
the initiative on the ballot. He asked nenbers not to allow
this issue to be "gutted" like the last initiative in 2002. As
a mninmum wage initiative signer, he asked nenber to let the
peopl e of Al aska deci de and not the | egislature.

5:44: 28 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 37- April 9, 2014



CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 384.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON stated that the public renmenbers 2002-

2003. He noted several dissenting letters in nenbers' packets
as conpared to the hundreds that asked the commttee to hold
this bill. If the legislature had not taken action in 2003, the
m ni mum wage would be $9.53 and Alaska wouldn't be the 17th
state as to mninum wage. Previously, |like Hawaii, Alaska is an
expensive place to live. He offered his belief that the public
feels the adage, "Once bitten, twice shy." The public was
bitten and bitten badly in 2003 and earned the right to be
cyni cal . He suggested that people would rather suffer defeat

and hold their heads up high than have the rug pulled out. He
suggested that Al askans want the m ninum wage increase in place
for two years and understand the legislature could undo the
second dollar per hour, inpose a tip credit, and undo the CPI
He further thought that the 2003 decision cost hundreds of
mllions for |ow wage workers. He felt certain that this bil
would not be before this commttee if it wasn't for the
initiative process. The evidence is to the contrary, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON noted that this is a turn of the
century issue. A great Republican pushed for mninmm wages. He
suggested that the conmmttee should hold the bill and listen to
the overwhel ming testinony that people want to go to the polls.
He said he would just give themwhat they want.

CHAIR OLSON offered his belief that the legislature hasn't had

anyone bring forth a m ni numwage bill since 2004.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT did not recall any mninmm wage bill in
recent years.

5:48:51 PM

CHAIR OLSON remarked that if HB 384 passes, it would guarantee
the m ni num wage. He suggested there isn't any guarantee that
the mninum wage initiative wll pass as evidenced by other
initiatives that have failed. He has liked sonme initiative and
not |iked others, noting the 90 day session as an exanple. He

said he would never make a nove to "go back” [on an initiative]
unless it came fromthe people.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON reflected that substantial testinmony has

been given by people who would like to see the mninmm wage
initiative go forward. He recalled earlier testinony that

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 38- April 9, 2014



suggested "if there was genuine interest by the legislature" the
m ni mum wage figures should be higher. He said he is mulling
over this testinony.

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT acknow edged that if the bill passes the
| egislature the m ni num wage woul d i ncrease. Further, he can't

speak for future legislatures, but only for hinself. He
indicated it is not his intention, and in fact, he would vote
agai nst any changes to the current bill. He acknow edged t hat
he would like the mninmm wage to be higher. He has a famly

menber who has earned mninmum wage for a long tine. He did not
view this as a union or nonunion issue, but it is fairness issue

to people who work. He related that he has run a business and
he tried to pay his enployees well and still nmake a profit and
keep good peopl e around. He said that the higher wages paid,
the better and nore content enployees are. Things just work
better. He suggested that HB 384 is as close to a guarantee as
can be put on paper. He trusts the people voting, but even

after the coastal zone managenent initiative failed, sonme people
wanted the legislature to take action to fix it.

5:54: 04 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER noved to report HB 384 out of committee

with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON obj ect ed.

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Chenault, Reinbold,
Herron, Saddler, MIllett and Oson voted in favor of reporting
HB 384 out of commttee. Representative Josephson voted agai nst
it. Therefore, HB 384 was reported out of the House Labor and
Commerce Standing Conmittee by a vote of 6-1.

5:54: 44 PM
ADJ OURNNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
5:54 p.m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 39- April 9, 2014



